
 

Board of Adjustment 

Thursday, April 19th, 2012 

7:00 PM 

Hood Room, Matthews Town Hall 

 

AGENDA 

 

I.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. INVOCATION 

 

III. APPROVAL OF MIINUTES:  January 5, 2012 

 

IV.        VARIANCE REQUEST:  Phat Hue Temple, 11502 Idlewilld Rd 

 

V.         APPEAL:  Reese Simon, 1326 Brittle Creek 

 

VI.         ADJOURNMENT 

 



  Board of Adjustment 
  January 5, 2012 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 5, 2012 
HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

 
 
PRESENT: Vice Chairman Stephen Lee; Member Walter Monestere; Alternate Members Jim Mortimer and 

Cecil Sumners; Attorney Robert Blythe; Planner II Jay Camp; Zoning Technician/Deputy Town 
Clerk Lori Canapinno 

 
ABSENT: Chairman Eric Welsh; Member Derek Morgan 
 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/INVOCATION 
 
Vice Chairman Lee called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm and rendered the invocation.  
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 
Mr. Monestere made a motion to approve the minutes of the November 3, 2011 meeting.  Mr. Sumners seconded 
and the motion was unanimously approved. 
 
 
SWEARING IN 
 
The following were sworn in: Jay Camp 
 
 
CASE 2011-10: VARIANCE; 9715 East Independence Boulevard – signage for Captain D’s Restaurant  
 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Mr. Camp explained the variance request is for currently legal signage to remain in place after the property at 
9715 East Independence Boulevard - the Captain D’s restaurant - is rezoned from Conditional to B-2(CD). The 
Town is working on an ongoing project to upgrade those properties zoned Conditional and replace that with a 
current zoning classification. This section of Windsor Square plaza is a sub-development with six parcels and six 
different owners. The Town contacted all six owners and has received approval from three so far. Mr. Camp is 
representing both staff and the property owner in this hearing.  
 
A rezoning application cannot be approved if there are any outstanding zoning violations on the property. Under 
the old Conditional zoning there was no maximum sign area. In 1994 Captain D’s made a request and was 
approved for a 135 square foot sign. Under the proposed B-2 zoning the maximum sign area is 80 square feet, so 
there is an excess of 55 square feet for the existing sign. The sign is legal now – it is the rezoning action itself that 
triggered the need for the requested variance.  
  

1 
 

Zoning
Draft



  Board of Adjustment 
  January 5, 2012 

It is important to note that under the old Conditional zoning, any change in signage would require a rezoning 
action. This Board may wish to look at conditions for any motion, to essentially grandfather in the existing sign 
and require new signage to meet the 80 square foot maximum limit. He suggested stating that refacing the sign 
would be permissible but not new signage for Captain D’s or signage for a different tenant. The intent would really 
be to allow the current tenant to keep what is currently in existence.  
 
Mr. Mortimer asked if a rezoning action would be necessary if the tenant wanted to simply move the sign. Mr. 
Camp explained that would be predicated on how the Board formed its motion. It could allow minor shifting of 
placement due to remodeling or something of that nature. Attorney Blythe suggested another option that would 
grant the variance for the specific sign where it is currently located or with permissible changes as specified in the 
motion.  Mr. Mortimer said he was afraid of unintended consequences. Mr. Camp explained that new corporate 
logos often trigger the need for a new sign face or minor remodeling may require a slight change in sign location.   
 
Vice Chairman Lee asked if this request could be included as a condition in the rezoning to B-2(CD). Mr. Camp 
explained that conditions that go against the ordinance are not allowed. In this case the ordinance would allow 
only 80 square feet. Attorney Blythe noted that it is true that the intent of conditional zoning is generally to impose 
additional conditions to a specific site rather than loosen the conditions of the overall district.   
 
Mr. Camp noted that these property owners are working with the Town to update the old zoning and have in good 
faith been allowing the Town to act on their behalf. He said if the Board chose to allow it, leaving them the 
flexibility to at least shift signs would be a good thing.  
 
After reviewing aerial and street level imagery, Vice Chairman Lee noted that the sign is comprised of individual 
letters and that there’s not really any other place for them to be moved. He said it seems like there is a low risk of 
future changes as long as the current tenant remains in that location.  
 
 
DELIBERATION 
 
Vice Chairman Lee said he understands the need to address potential future changes to the sign. He said he did 
not have a problem with allowing them to move the sign if necessary. It’s not a box sign so it’s not going to be 
easy to change anyway. Mr. Mortimer said he supported that point of view.  
 
Mr. Mortimer made a motion to approve the variance request to maintain the existing signage on the Captain D’s 
building at 9715 East Independence Boulevard after it is rezoned to B-2(CD), and to allow movement within the 
same elevation and and/or repair of the sign. Mr. Sumners seconded. 
 
Vice Chairman Lee read the findings of fact. If the applicant complies with the provisions of the ordinance he can 
secure a reasonable return from or make reasonable use of his property. As stated, the variance allows the 
property to be converted to B-2 and retain the signs until such time as they are replaced with conforming signs, 
and also allows for some flexibility for the tenant to make some repairs and slight movement of the signs. 
 
The hardship of which the applicant complains does result from unique circumstance related to the applicant’s 
land. The property is proposed to be rezoned to a current zoning classification by action of the Town of Matthews 
along with other parcels in Windsor Square.  
 
The hardship is not the result of the applicant’s own actions. The sign is currently legal and was approved by the 
Town Board in the original Conditional zoning at Windsor Square. 
 

2 
 

Zoning
Draft



  Board of Adjustment 
  January 5, 2012 

3 
 

The variance will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the ordinance and will preserve its spirit. 
The variance does not make any noticeable change to any other property owners or customers will allow the 
property owner to avoid incurring additional costs. It also prevents the nonconformity from being expanded at a 
later date.  
 
The variance will secure the public safety and welfare and will do substantial justice. There is no known detriment 
to public safety or welfare. Future changes to signs or tenants will be made easier by the change in zoning and 
those future changes will be in keeping with Matthews’ current zoning ordinance.  
 
The motion to approve to approve the variance request to maintain the existing signage on the Captain D’s 
building at 9715 East Independence Boulevard after it is rezoned to B-2(CD), and to allow movement within the 
same elevation and and/or repair of the sign was unanimously approved.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. Mortimer made a motion to adjourn.  Mr. Sumners seconded and the motion was unanimously approved. The 
meeting adjourned at 7:27 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Lori Canapinno 
Zoning Technician/Deputy Town Clerk 
 
 
 

Zoning
Draft



Matthews Board Of Adjustment                                                

Case 2012-01 

Type of Request: Variance                                       

April 19, 2012 

Summary of Request 

The applicant seeks a variance to reduce the minimum landscape screening between an 
institutional use and a residentially zoned property 

 

            Background  

  

The Phat Hue Temple is located on approximately 5 acres at 11502 Idlewild Rd. The tem-
ple congregation purchased two large single family lots and combined them to create the 
Temple campus. Two existing ranch homes as well as a new, 4,000 sq. ft. worship facility 
that began construction in 2008 make up the campus. Upon making a final inspection at 
the property earlier this year, County Zoning Inspector David Barley noted that required 
landscaping per the Town’s Landscape Chapter in the Zoning Ordinance was missing. 
Specifically, a landscape screen was not installed along the northwestern property line 
with a single family occupied home. The area is heavily wooded, however, there is little 
screening at eye level as most of the forest in the area consists of large deciduous hard-
wood trees. Screening is required to provide a visual buffer at a height of 6’ above ground 
level. 

 

Due to the missing landscaping, Mecklenburg County has not issued a final C/O for the 
property thus power has not been established to the new building and it cannot be legally 
occupied. The owner requests a variance to the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance in 
lieu of planting new material. Should a variance not be granted, the Ordinance requires 
the evergreen portion of a screening buffer to be established among the existing vegeta-
tion in order to meet the minimum standards in the Ordinance. A landscape plan approved 
in 2007 showed landscape screening that was to be installed at this location.  

 

 

 

 

 



 

Board of Adjustment Worksheet 

Findings of Fact 

This form can be used by the Matthews Board of Adjustment during deliberations on zoning variance cases to assist in developing 
required findings of fact to support approval for, or denial of, a variance request. Staff comments are provided here for each finding 
listed in the state statute. Board members may choose to use the information provided by staff, the applicant, other sworn testimony, 
and personal observations mentioned in the hearing in making their determinations on these findings.  

1. If the applicant complies with the provisions of the ordinance he can/cannot secure a reasonable return from, 
or make reasonable use of, his property. (It is not sufficient that failure to grant a variance simply makes the 
property less valuable.) 
The property owner must secure a variance or plant new screening material to obtain a C/O for the build‐
ing 
 

2. The hardship of which the applicant complains does/does not result from unique circumstance related to the 
applicant’s land. (Hardship common to an en re group of proper es resul ng in overly restric ve regula-
ons should be referred to the Planning Board. Unique personal or family hardships cannot be considered 

since a variance applies to, and runs with, the land.) 
The area of woods in ques on is undisturbed and appears to remain mostly as it was prior to the con‐
struc on of the new facility however the area does not contain much vegeta on at eye level. 
 

3. The hardship is/is not the result of the applicant’s own ac ons. 
The applicant does not appear to have removed any exis ng vegeta on from this por on of the property 
 

4. The variance will/will not be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the ordinance and will/will 
not preserve its spirit. (Any variance granted should be the least possible devia on from the ordinance 
standards that will allow a reasonable use of the land without sustainability detrac ng from the character of 
the neighborhood.) 
The variance seeks only to leave the exis ng wooded area as an undisturbed buffer between the proper‐
es. 

 
 

5. The variance will/will not secure the public safety and welfare and will/will not do substan al jus ce. (Any 
decision on a variance request should consider that the benefit to the public will be substan ally out-
weighed by the harm suffered by the applicant.) 

Adding plant material would not create any harm to the exis ng mature vegeta on and would be more in 
keeping with the intent of the Ordinance than not plan ng anything at all. 
 



Photos Of The Area In Question 

View of woods with 
adjacent home and 
storage shed in  
background 

Photo taken from this 
location on property 



Photos Of The Area In Question 

Photo taken from this 
location on property 



Photos Of The Area In Question 

Photo taken from this 
location on property 



 Area In Question 











Matthews Board Of Adjustment                                                

Case 2012-02 

Type of Request: Appeal                                       

April 19, 2012 

Summary of Request 

The applicant is appealing a Notice of Violation  

          

        Background   

The owner of the home at 1326 Brittle Creek (parcel 227-292-32), Reese Simon, operates 
Simons Lawn Care and regularly parks a lawn truck at his residence. On February 7, 
2012, Code Enforcement Officer Carlo McKoy issued a Notice of Violation based on an 
inspection of the property. The Notice of Violation is based on the Town of Matthews re-
quirements for vehicles used in conjunction with home occupations at Section 153.166. 
More specifically, the code states that “vehicles used primarily as passenger vehicles only 
will be permitted in connection with the conduct of the customary home occupation.” 

Home occupations are allowed in Matthews although specific prohibitions are made re-
garding outside storage, noise, and other circumstances that could potentially detract from 
other residents peaceful enjoyment of their homes.  

It is the opinion of Matthews staff that the vehicle in question, a Mitsubishi flatbed box 
truck, would not be considered a vehicle used primarily as a passenger vehicle due to its 
size, scale and intended use. By passenger vehicle, the code implies that the primary use 
of the vehicle is to transport persons to and from daily activities, not to transport goods 
and services in conjunction with a business. In this case, the lawn truck in question is 
clearly designed with the primary goal of transporting lawn equipment to different work 
sites.  

Although the appellant may occasionally use the vehicle for personal use as stated in the 
appeal, the Ordinance clearly states that its primary use must be as a passenger vehicle. 
As an example, a home based business owner who drives a pickup truck with graphics on 
it would be allowed to keep it at the property because its primarily role and intended de-
sign is that of a passenger vehicle.  

Mr. Simon can continue to operate a home based business from his home, but according 
to the Matthews Zoning Code, the above mentioned truck should not be allowed to be 
stored at the home in conjunction with the business.  

 
 



      BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

       FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS 
 
The Board of Adjustment may wish to use the following questions to develop its understand-
ing of the case: 

 

1 What is the current staff interpretation of this section? 

2 Can this staff interpretation be consistently applied to different locations? 

3 Does this staff interpretation cause undue hardship to most, or all, applicable locations? 

4 Can this interpretation be amended through a zoning text amendment if the Town Board of Commissioners de-

cides one is necessary? 

5 Is the current staff determination difficult to understand? 

6 Is there any information available to assist in determining the Town Board of Commissioners’ reasons for the sub-

ject regulation? 

7 What is a common understanding or definition of a passenger vehicle? 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 



Subject Vehicle 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Google Street View 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 153.166  CUSTOMARY HOME OCCUPATIONS. 
 
 Customary home occupations may be established in a dwelling in single-family or multi-family residential 
districts, the R-MH district, or office districts.  In office districts, these uses are subject to all requirements of that 
district. 
 
 (A) The home occupation must be clearly incidental to the residential use of the dwelling and must not 
change the essential residential character of the dwelling. 
 
 (B) Use of the dwelling for this purpose must be limited to 25% of one floor of the principal building 
or 50% of one floor of an accessory building.   
 
 (C) No outside storage may be used in connection with the home occupation.   
 
 (D) Machinery that causes noises or other interference in radio or television reception is prohibited.  
Additionally, no equipment or process shall be employed that will cause noise, vibration, odor, glare, or electrical or 
communication interference detectable to the normal senses off the lot, in the case of detached dwelling units, or 
outside the dwelling unit, in the case of attached dwelling units. 
 
 (E) Internal or external alterations inconsistent with the residential use of the building will not be 
permitted. 
 
 (F) Only residents of the dwelling may be engaged in the home occupation. 
 
 (G) No display of products may be visible from the street. 
 
 (H) Permitted customary home occupations include, but are not limited to: home based businesses 
such as offices for professionals such as architects, brokers, counselors, clergy, dentists, doctors, cartographers, 
engineers, insurance agents, lawyers, real estate agents, accountants, editors, publishers journalists, psychologists, 
contract management, graphic design, landscape design, surveyors, cleaning services, alterations, certified massage 
therapists, travel agents, telecommuting, gift baskets, flower arrangements, home craft businesses (such as artists, 
quilters, sculptors, musicians weavers, jewelry making, photographers), instructional services (such as teaching 
music, dance, art, yoga, tutoring) and other similar uses.  
 
 (I) Vehicles used primarily as passenger vehicles only will be permitted in connection with the 
conduct of the customary home occupation. 
 
 (J)   Services provided for any of the permitted home occupations must be limited to no more than two 
clients at a time.  In the event of a time overlap between scheduled appointments, additional clients may be 
permitted on the premises. 
 
 (K) Prohibited customary home occupations include, but are not limited to: caterers, food vendors, 
equipment and vehicle repair shops, appliance repair shops, small mechanical repair shops, barber shops, beauty 
shops, kennels, commercial bakeries, veterinarian clinics, funeral homes, cabinetry making, welding, trucking, adult 
oriented businesses, warehousing, on-site vehicular sales, and other similar uses. 


















	BOA draft minutes 1-5-12.pdf
	HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL


